
Synergy Housing

Limited

                             

Annual report and financial 

statements for the year ended

 31 March 2017



Synergy Housing Limited

Contents Page

Legal and Administrative Details 1

Report of the Board 3

Independent Auditors' report to the members of Synergy Housing Limited 16

Statement of Comprehensive Income 18

Statement of Financial Position 19

Statement of Changes in Reserves 20

Notes to the Financial Statements 21



Synergy Housing Limited

Legal and administrative details

Link House, First Floor, West Street, Poole, Dorset. BH15 1LD

The association is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency ( HCA).

Members of the board:

Non-executive directors

Andrew Jackson Chairman

Phillip Owens Senior Independent Director
Sally Higham

Steve Trusler

Arthur Merchant Retired 30 September 2016

Mary Watkins

Mike Biles

Andrew Kluth Appointed 1 October 2016

Executive directors

Bjorn Howard Group Chief Executive

John Brace

Executive Team: Bjorn Howard Group Chief Executive
John Brace

Rachel Credidio Group Strategic Change Director

Michael Reece Group Operations and Asset Director 

Graeme Stanley Group Strategy and Implementation Director

Amanda Williams Group Development Director

Brian Whittaker Group Human Resources Director

Association Secretary: Douglas Smith

Independent Auditors: PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

3 Forbury Place

23 Forbury Road

Reading

RG1 3JH

Group Resources Director and Deputy Group 

Chief Executive

Registered office:

Legal status:

The directors of the association who were in office during the year and up to the 

date of signing the financial statements, unless otherwise indicated, are set out 

below. 

Group Resources Director and Deputy Group 

Chief Executive

Synergy Housing Limited ('the association') is incorporated under the Co-operative 

and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 number 31447R and is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of Aster Group Limited and a member of the Aster Group ('the group').

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 1



Synergy Housing Limited

Legal and administrative details (continued)

Principal Bankers: Nat West Bank Plc Royal Bank of Scotland Plc

Business Banking Notebeme House

503 Ringwood Road 84 High Street

Ferndown Southampton

Bournemouth BH22 9BL Hampshire SO14 2NT

Principal Solicitors: Trowers and Hamlins

Sceptre Court
40 Tower Hill
London EC3N 4DX

Funders: Santander Corporate Banking Abbey National Treasury Services Plc.

Corporate Lending Operations 2 Triton Square

4th Floor Santander House Regents Place
100 Ludgate Hill London NW1 3AN

London EC4M 7RE

Royal Bank of Scotland Plc Affordable Housing Finance Plc

1st Floor, 280 Bishopsgate 4th Floor, 107 Cannon Street

London EC2M 3RB London EC4N 5AF

Security Trustees: Prudential Trustee Association Limited

Laurence Pountney Hill

London EC4R 0HH

Valuers: Jones, Lang LaSalle Limited

45 Church Street
Birmingham B3 2RT

Financial Advisers: J.C. Rathbone Associates Limited

12 St. James Square

London SW1Y 4LB

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 2



Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board

The board presents its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
 
Principal activities  
Synergy Housing Limited’s principal activity is to provide affordable homes and associated services as a 
Registered Provider. 

 
Results for the year 
The profit for the year was £13.7 million (2016: £8.8 million). 
  
The Board 
The members of the board are listed on page 1. No members of the board held, at any time during the 
year, any beneficial interest shares of the association. 
  
Share Capital 
During the year, 3 shares were issued (2016: 2 shares) and 3 were cancelled (2016: 5 shares)  leaving a 
balance in the share capital of the association of £28 (2016: £28). 
 
Directors' indemnities 
Synergy Housing Limited is a member of the Aster Group which has made qualifying third party 
indemnity provisions for the benefits of its directors and officers (which extend to the performance of any 
duties as a director or officer of an associated company or subsidiary). The provisions have been in 
place throughout the year and remain in force at the date of this report.  
 
Going concern 
The board has a reasonable expectation that the association has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future given its net asset position. For this reason, it continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements.  
 
Reduced reporting disclosures 
Section 1.12 of FRS 102 allows subsidiaries to opt out of making some disclosures in its financial 
statements and not to report the following: 
a) A reconciliation between the opening and closing shares in issue as described in paragraph 

4.12(a)(iv) of FRS 102; 
b) A Statement of Cash Flows as outlined in section 7 of FRS 102; 
c) The detailed disclosures of financial instruments, carrying values, terms and conditions and hedging 

relationships outlined in paragraph 11.41, 11.42, 11.44, 11.45, 11.48, 12.27, 12.29 and 12.29A of 
FRS 102; 

d) The requirement to disclose key management personnel compensation outlined in paragraph 33.7 of 
FRS 102; 

 
Synergy Housing Limited has taken advantage of some of these exemptions this year as set out in note 
3. A full set of disclosures are included in the group’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
Paragraph 4.4 of the Housing SORP 2014 allows registered providers that are subsidiaries of a group to 
opt out of providing a Strategic Report. Synergy Housing Limited has taken this opt out and not produced 
a Strategic Report.  
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

Target Actual Actual

% rent lost through vacant properties 0.70% 0.32% 0.27%

Average number of days to re-let - General Needs 16 11 16

24 16

% arrears (General Needs & HOPS) 3% 2.34% 1.69%

% repairs completed on time 98% 98% 99%

% of tenants satisfied with repair work 80% 85% 90%

% of all appointments kept 90% 99% 89%

New homes completed 292 301 236

Average number of days to re-let - Housing for Older 

People (HOPS) 17

Review of the association's business 
Synergy Housing Limited owns and manages approximately 10,000 (2016: 9,800) homes for more than 
21,000 (2016: 21,000) customers, and is a developer of new affordable housing. Zebra Property Solutions 
Limited, a subsidiary of the association, undertakes commercial and development activities which are outside 
the charitable rules for Synergy Housing Limited. Aster Solar Limited, a joint venture with a fellow subsidiary, 
Aster Communities, provides green electricity to Synergy Housing Limited's tenants using photovoltaic 
panels. 
 
Zebra Property Solutions Limited remains as a non-charitable, wholly owned subsidiary of Synergy Housing 
Limited. 
 
Aster Solar Limited remains as a non-charitable joint venture of Synergy Housing Limited.   
 
Operational performance 
Operational and financial performance in the business continues to be strong. Key highlights are as follows:  
 
• Good performance in income collection despite a challenging environment evidenced by current tenant 

arrears of 2.34% against a target of 3.00% and prior year of 1.69%.  
 

• Good performance in rent lost through properties being empty with only 0.32% of rent lost compared to a 
target of 0.70% and prior year of 0.27%. 
 

• Improved performance in re-letting homes with average number of days to re-let five days better than target 
for general needs and eight days better than target for housing for older people (HOPS).  
 

• Completed 301 new homes for rent or sale against a target of 292 and prior year of 236.  
 

• A continued strong focus on managing the impacts of welfare reform and the roll out of Universal Credit, 
through the internal Strategy and Practitioners groups, ensuring that customers are supported at the same 
time as protecting income streams.   
 

• Synergy Housing Limited continues to improve its approach to recovering service charges with tighter 
controls and more efficient systems for recording expenditure and charging customers.  
 

• Operational savings of £500,000 were achieved through a strong focus on efficiency, working smarter and 
using technology more effectively. For example the association has moved away from the reliance on 
traditional customer involvement and now emphasis is on optimising on-line consultations through the 
website, digital communications, email consultations, utilisation of quick polls and better use of social 
media.   
 

• Work to transform customer contact started with the merging of Synergy Housing Limited contact centres. 
The association continues to change the way it works to reduce effort and make processes simpler and 
easier, providing  services through a range of different channels, more efficiently.  
 

• Synergy Housing Limited has Key Performance Indicators. Targets are set at the beginning of each year as 
part of the business planning process and regular reports are drawn from each of the key operating 
systems to monitor performance. Measures for the association  are highlighted below: 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Operational performance (continued) 
The association has had a successful financial year. Operating profit increased by £3.5 million to £22.4 
million (2016: £18.8 million). 
 
• Turnover from lettings increased by £1.6 million with general needs income increasing by £785,000 to 

£38.9 million. Rental income from Supported Housing increased by £419,000 to £11.3 million and shared 
ownership income increased by £423,000 to £1.6 million. Increases relate to the increase in available 
properties. 
 

• First tranche shared ownership income increased by £4.8 million to £10.0 million during the year. 
 

• Housing accommodation operating costs were level at £30.9 million. 
 

• Major repairs expenditure remained static at £4.2 million (net of component capitalisation).  
 

 
Value for Money 
Synergy Housing Limited complies with the Homes and Communities Agency’s economic standard Value for 
Money, which is revised and published annually, and a summary can be found in the consolidated financial 
statements of Aster Group or a full report on the group's website at the following address: 
www.aster.co.uk/value-for-money. 
 
Future plans of the business 
Synergy as part of the Aster Group launched its revised corporate strategy on 1 April 2016. The group’s 
vision is that everyone has a home. Having a decent home is a basic right and has a huge impact on 
peoples’ lives - from their health, to their wellbeing, and education opportunities. 
 
As a not-for-dividend business, which exists to benefit society, all profits are reinvested back into the 
business to build more homes. The association's purpose is to be an ethical housing developer and landlord 
to benefit society, focussed on 'doing the right thing'. Over the next eight years, as well as providing services 
to existing customers, Aster Group will aim to build around 10,000 new homes.  
 
The group is building a transparent, outcome-focused culture with clear lines of accountability running 
throughout the business. The corporate plan sets out a clear operational direction which will enable Aster to 
successfully deliver the corporate strategy. The priorities for Synergy Housing Limited are as follows: 
 
• Achieve operational and financial performance targets, with a strong focus on VFM and efficiency. 
• Deliver good housing, care and support and asset management and maintenance services and deliver the 

discretionary work the association chooses to do though our corporate social responsibility framework.  
• Transform the business to embrace digital technology;  
• Get greater value from property assets; 
• Increase the level of innovation in the business; 
• Build as many homes as possible; 
• Increase agility and resilience;  
• Increase employee engagement.  

 
The landscape for 2017/18 poses a number of risks including: 
• The uncertainty of the external environment and government policy towards the housing sector; 
• The impact of welfare reforms will continue to be a challenge and could be significantly different to that the 

association has envisaged and prepared for; 
• The availability and cost of funds for development, allied to inflationary pressures on construction costs; 
• The risk of regulatory actions from the government and / or HCA for failure to meet the economic and 

consumer standards set out in the regulatory framework. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Brexit 
The British Government has triggered Article 50 which starts the process of Britain leaving the EU. The 
exact outcome and consequences of this decision remain unknown. The company's principal risks are 
explained below and Brexit could potentially trigger some or all of these risks. 
 
 
Principal risks and uncertainties 
Managing the risks and opportunities are essential to Synergy’s and Aster’s long-term success and 
sustainability. The group endeavours to pursue opportunities which provide the right balance of risk and 
seeks to maintain exposure to these risks at an acceptable level in line with the risk appetite of the 
organisation. 
 
The group’s framework for opportunity and risk management supports Aster’s approach to business and 
enhances the chances of delivering the strategy. 
  
Risk identification and management 
Aster’s system for identifying and managing risks is embedded from the top down in its organisational 
structure, operations and management systems and accords with the risk management guidelines and 
principles set out in ISO 31000, the International Standard for Risk Management. The group board has 
overall responsibility for ensuring the group’s opportunity and risk management and internal control 
frameworks are appropriate and applied across the organisation. Principal risks are reviewed at each 
Group Risk & Compliance Committee meeting and quarterly by the board. 
 
The risks associated with the delivery of the strategy and work programme, and the associated mitigation 
measures and action plans are maintained in a series of risk registers at group, company and project 
level. Assessment of the potential risks plays a fundamental role in the evaluation of each new opportunity 
and the management of all projects. The risks and mitigating actions from all of these sources are 
consolidated into the group risk matrix. 
 
Principal risks 
During 2016/17, the board regularly reviewed the risks which they believe could adversely impact the 
business and also focussed on the opportunities that could be realised to deliver the strategy. The 
following list provides an overview of the principal strategic and financial risks that pertain to Synergy 
Housing Limited at the end of March 2017. The list is not exhaustive or set out in order of priority and is 
continually subject to change: 
 
• Government Policy Change - As a registered provider of social housing, the group is  exposed to the 
impact of changes in government policy. 
 

• The group maintains prudent financial assumptions to allow sufficient strength to weather      
changing policy. In addition, the group’s financial plan undergoes scenario and stress testing using 
single and multiple variables to ensure that the business can cope with them. 
 
•  Once a change in policy is known, the potential impact on the business and financial plan is 
modelled to further understand the implications. 

 
• The group seeks to recognise the opportunities presented by changing policy to counter any 
negative implications that may be felt. 

 
•   Development programme delayed or frustrated – The group’s vision is that “everyone has a home” and 
in order to achieve this it must build more homes.  In order to develop new homes the group requires 
either land to build on or developer contributions to help supply affordable housing. 
 

• The group’s development programme and related risks are assessed and monitored prior to 
purchase of sites through to completion by appropriately skilled people. 
 
• There is a clear route for approval of schemes up to Board level as appropriate. 
 
• The development team work closely with finance to ensure funding is available where required. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Principal risks (continued) 
•   Regulatory action/intervention – The group is heavily regulated including by the Homes & 
Communities Agency (HCA) and the Care Quality Commission (CQC). 
 

• The group operates a regulatory compliance framework which embeds controls across the 
operations of the group that help support compliance with the relevant regulation.  
  
• Regulation matters are regularly monitored and reviewed at a senior level across the group 
and at the Risk & Compliance Committee. 
 
• Management remain vigilant over adherence to the Regulatory Framework including 
cyclical and reactive review and regular reporting to boards.  
 
• The Group Chief Executive and senior management team maintain regular contact with the 
HCA and other regulators. 
 

• Sales risk – The group undertakes a number of property sales activities to include market sales, 
new built shared ownership sales and stair-casing. 
 

• Risk is managed at all stages with the sales team providing input from the point of scheme 
appraisal. 
 
• Contingencies are built into each scheme including not reflecting any house price growth 
assumptions in the development appraisal and a prudent estimate of the likely sales price 
achieved. 
 
• Transactional sales figures are monitored weekly. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Treasury policy, liquidity and credit risk 
The group operates a centralised Treasury Management function. Outlined below are extracts from the Aster 
Group financial statements that relate to treasury policy, liquidity and credit risk:  
 
Treasury policy 
Synergy Housing Limited, as part of the Aster Group, operates a centralised Treasury Management function 
whose primary purpose is to manage liquidity, funding, investment and the group’s financial risk, including risk 
from volatility in interest rates and liquidity. The Group Treasury Committee reviews and approves the Group 
Treasury Policy before recommending it to the Group Board. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The association’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings is managed by using fixed rate loans 
and interest rate swaps. It is the group’s policy to manage interest rate risk on a group basis by applying the 
Group Treasury Policy by having at least 50% of debt, subject to fixed rates for the medium to long term. As at 
31 March 2017, 93% of the association's debt was fixed (2016: 77%) for a weighted average maturity of 12.3 
years (2016: 10.3 years).  The group finances its operations by a mixture of retained surpluses, borrowing from 
the capital markets, government grants and bank loans. 
 
Current liquidity 
Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring the group can meet at least six months of committed spend from a 
combination of cash and loan facilities capable of immediate drawdown. In addition, loan facilities are required 
to be in place to finance all committed expenditure of the group. The group has sufficient undrawn existing 
facilities and cash available to fund the group, at its full committed and generic development programme level, 
until February 2019. Further financing is not required for another 22 months. This is significantly above the 
HCA’s requirement for funding which expects finance to be agreed and in place 12 months before it is required. 
 
At 31 March 2017, undrawn loan and overdraft facilities for the association amounted to £29.5 million (2016: 
£112 million), all of which is committed and available for immediate drawdown. 
 
The drawdown of loan facilities is closely linked to investment in new homes. At the end of the year, the group 
had not committed to any investment that would take it beyond the scale of facilities available. 
 
In order to maintain flexibility in the management of liquidity, the group’s policy is to ensure that no more than 
10% of debt matures in any 12 month period over the next five years where no replacement finance has been 
arranged. Of the association's debt, £6 million (2% of the current drawn facility) is repayable within five years. 
 
Credit risk 
The group's policy is to minimise borrowings and surplus funds and investments are only made with highly rated 
counterparties on a Group Treasury Committee approved list with a maximum investment of £30 million per 
counterparty or up to a limit of the principal amount outstanding of any lender to the group.  
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Corporate and social responsibility 
 
Disabled employees 
As a member of the Aster Group, Synergy Housing Limited responds positively to employment applications 
from people with disabilities where they meet the essential requirements for a vacancy. Aster Group 
companies are accredited as ‘Positive About Disabled People’ employers. This means the group will 
guarantee an interview for an applicant with a disability who has the necessary knowledge, skills and 
experience to undertake the job. Appointments will be made on merit. Full and equal opportunities are 
available to employees with disabilities for training, career development and promotion. If an existing 
employee acquires a disability, through accident or illness, the group will provide continuing employment 
wherever practicable in the same, or a suitable alternative position. The group will provide appropriate training 
and support to achieve this aim. 
 
Employee involvement 
Synergy Housing Limited operates the Aster Group framework for employee information and consultation 
which complies fully with the requirements of the Information and Consultation of Employees Regulations 
2004. The group has an inclusive Employee Consultative Forum, led by a member of the Group Executive 
Board or Group Leadership Team. During the year, the practice of providing employees with information about 
each of the individual companies, the group, and our wider operating environment has continued through the 
intranet, corporate employee newsletters, company-specific newsletters and colleague briefings. 
 
The group was assessed against the Investors in People Standard in November 2014 and was re-accredited 
as a result. The group underwent a further Investor in People assessment in April 2017 achieving accreditation 
at Silver level. The assessment involved initial context analysis and the administration of the online 
assessment survey, to which 438 people responded to the survey. In addition, feedback discussions took 
place with 65 people from across the organisation. 
 
One key conclusion was 'Aster is placing a real focus on continuous improvement. Improvement is being 
driven in several ways. People referred to the corporate objective of efficiency which is leading to a review of 
practice and the introduction of new approaches through corporate projects and innovation (lean) reviews. 
There is also the drive to create a sustainable business through the use of digital technology by default and 
the enablement of flexible working. 
 
Comments included: 
 
"The company is going from strength to strength. I feel proud to work here."; 
 
"The company has come on leaps and bounds and is changing with the times. It’s great.";  
 
This will be followed by annual ‘health-checks’ in 2018 and 2019 to improve the frequency of results. 
 
Employees are encouraged to present their work-specific suggestions through a forum called ‘Advise Aster’ 
and are consulted regularly about strategies and policies. There are regular company briefings and team 
meetings held between local management and employees to allow a free flow of information and ideas. The 
group also has various notice boards and an online Human Resources (HR) system which keeps employees 
informed of job opportunities and secondments.  
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Corporate and social responsibility (continued) 
 
Employee involvement (continued) 
 
The group has established the Culture Working Group; it includes leaders from every part of our business and 
they are working to support cultural change across Aster. 
 
They’re supported by the Transformation Network – our 90-strong group of colleagues – who will help keep 
colleagues informed about the group’s vision and strategy and seek feedback, which can help create positive 
change. 
 
The group carried out the first internally run colleague satisfaction survey in autumn 2016, employee 
satisfaction data shows an improvement against the previous Best Companies score, however it should be 
noted that changes to questions and methodology mean that these are not direct comparisons. The overall 
score for the group was 5.2 out of a maximum score of 7.  This is considered to be an excellent result.  Areas 
the group scored well in included: 
 
• I know what is expected of me at work; 
• I know how my role contributes to the vision that everyone has a home; 
• I feel part of a team; 
• I enjoy my job; 
• I know whether I am performing well, and 
• My manager is there if I need help. 
 
In total, 60% of the people working for Aster Group completed the survey; this is the highest response rate 
achieved and means that The Group can be confident that the findings are a good representation of its 
employee experience. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Corporate and social responsibility (continued) 
 
Employee involvement (continued) 
Employee comments included: 
“The Group looks after its staff with good pay and benefits” 
  
“Aster enables people to start out and develop within the company and supports them in developing their 
careers” 
  
“Good with flexible working resulting in good home/life balance” 
  
“Aster always has an eye on the future for the benefit of customers, staff and stakeholders” 
  
“A great atmosphere has been created which makes Aster a great place to work” 
  
“Aster’s approach to training is the best I’ve ever experienced” 
  
“We are very clear on our vision and everybody understands this vision” 
  
“We receive regular and helpful communications about the business” 
  
“Technology to encourage remote working is great and easy to use” 
  
“We build good homes for the communities” 
  
“I am passionate about working for an ethical landlord / house builder “ 
  
Aster Foundation was introduced during 2016. It is committed to, in part, creating a culture where wellbeing is a 
priority through: 
 
• Flexible working; 
• Access to health screening; 
• Ability to buy annual leave.  
  
These are just examples of the many initiatives that have been introduced. 
  
Progress made this year includes: 
  
A scheme that offers up to £200 match funding for each colleague fundraising for charity. Aster Foundation’s 
pledge is to make £20,000 available and so far £8,300 has been match funded.  
  
A recently launched volunteering scheme enables employees to take a paid day's leave to volunteer for an 
organisation of their choice. Aster Foundation’s pledge is 150 days and so far 15 days have been used.  
  
Aster Foundation is committed to providing work placements and volunteering opportunities for people in local 
communities. The pledge is 40 placements and so far eight placements  have been completed. 
  
Under the Foundation, the group has pledged to reduce company business mileage to less than 500,000 miles 
each quarter. This has been achieved in 2016, with the last quarter seeing a reduction in mileage to just 337,000 
miles.  
  
Aster Foundation pledged to generate 12 apprenticeship and trainees opportunities within Aster Group. All 
twelve have now been filled. 
  
Aster Foundation committed to providing colleagues with the correct IT equipment to support flexible working 
with this year’s target set at providing the correct IT equipment to 85% of colleagues. At the end of March 70% 
of colleagues have equipment that will enable them to work effectively from home. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Corporate and social responsibility (continued) 
 
Equality and diversity 
Synergy Housing Limited shares the group's  commitment to promoting equality and diversity internally and in 
the wider community. It tries to ensure, together with suppliers, contractors, consultants and customers, that it 
will be fair in all dealings with people, communities and organisations. Services are therefore designed wherever 
possible to ensure people have equal access to them. There is a formal Equality and Diversity review and action 
process. This is delivered through a group-wide Equality and Diversity Champions Group, sponsored by a 
Group Leadership Team member and has representatives from every company across the group. One of the 
group-wide ‘Competencies’, on which selection and appraisal is based, is ‘Equality and Diversity’. 
 
Environmental impacts and mitigation 
During 2015 the group approved a target to ensure that all properties should have an energy performance 
certificate (EPC) rating of band C by 2025, five years ahead of the national 2030 Fuel Poverty Regulation 
deadline.   
 
The Fuel Poverty Regulations set out an interim 2020 target whereby properties should be improved to meet at 
least an EPC D rating where reasonably practicable. During 2016/17 the group has reduced the number of EPC 
E rated properties from 44 down to two and continues to have no properties with an EPC F-G rating. This means 
the group is well on target to achieve the interim 2020 Fuel Poverty target almost three years ahead of schedule.  
 
This proactive approach continues by identifying those properties that need additional investment and carrying 
out this work as necessary. Alternatively where that investment will cost too much or where it’s uneconomical to 
bring a property to a C energy performance rating, individual properties are considered for potential disposal.  
The bulk of this activity will continue to be funded from a business as usual approach, by reviewing heating 
policies, ensuring customers manage their energy effectively, working increasingly in partnership, and only 
focussing on activities that are good for the business and that will benefit customers. 
 
The group continues to help its customers run their homes efficiently. During the year energy efficiency training 
has been provided to 42 front line colleagues that has resulted in 60 customers being assisted with energy 
switching advice, and a further 732 customers receiving advice or works to reduce condensation and mould in 
their home. 
 
The Aster Group has maintained its certification to the ISO 14001 environmental management system (EMS) 
standard, receiving just a single non-conformity during the two most recent surveillance audits.  During the 
coming year, the organisation is looking to upgrade its certification to the latest (2015) version of the standard, 
with greater focus being placed on broader, life-cycle issues such as procurement of goods and services, 
management of contractors and reducing customers’ environmental impacts. 
   
A new action plan has been developed for the corporate social responsibility strategy, which includes a ‘planet’ 
section. The main areas of focus for the planet theme will be: continuing to improve business efficiency; 
reducing fuel poverty amongst customers; and keeping assets, operations and services resilient in the face of a 
changing climate.  To better inform our plans, research will be commissioned in some of the key areas where 
knowledge gaps exist, including energy storage, smart grids and modular homes. 
 
The group is also looking at how management of its waste can be improved, with the dual aims of reducing 
costs and minimising environmental impact.  Work is underway on a group-wide procurement exercise, which it 
is anticipated will yield significant efficiency savings.  
 
The UK Corporate Governance Code 
The group has adopted the UK Corporate Governance Code published by the FRC in May 2010 and revised in 
April 2016 together with a revised version of its guidance on Audit Committees. Full details of which are included 
in the consolidated Aster Group financial statements. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Report of the Board (continued)

Responsibilities of the Board 
The board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.  
 
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation require 
the board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Registered Social Landlord (RSL) and of the surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the board is required to:   
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and  
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

RSL will continue in business.   
 
The board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
RSL’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the RSL and to 
enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the[Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Social 
Housing in England 2012. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the RSL and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
The board’s report on internal controls assurance 
The directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for identifying and managing the risks faced 
by the Synergy Housing Limited and its subsidiary and for assisting with the development and on-going 
compliance with the group’s system of internal control relating to those risks. However, such a system is 
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In accordance with 
Principle C.2 of the Code and the related guidance, the company, through Aster Group, has established the 
procedures necessary to ensure that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating, managing and 
mitigating significant risks to the company and for determining the nature and extent of the significant risks it 
is willing to take to achieve its strategic objectives. The directors confirm that such procedures have been in 
place for the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements and 
have been reviewed during the year. 
 
All members of the Executive Board take internal control seriously.  Employees are encouraged to discuss 
ways in which procedures can be improved with their managers in an open way.  Disregard of control 
procedures may be treated as a disciplinary issue. 
 
Training in appreciation of risk and methods of control forms an integral part of the induction programme for 
new managers joining the group and employees being promoted to management roles. 
 
Any major instances of failure of controls to operate are reported to the Group Audit Committee and the 
Group Board. 
 
All boards are aware that the external auditors, the HCA and other external accrediting bodies have no 
specific responsibility to identify shortcomings in our systems of internal control.  For this reason the group 
principally relies on senior management and internal audit as the primary sources of reassurance. 
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Report of the Board (continued)

The board’s report on internal controls assurance (continued) 
The principal features of this system include: 
• a procedure for monitoring the effectiveness of the internal control system through a tiered management 

structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authority; 
• clearly defined authorisation procedures for capital investment and acquisitions; 
• strategic plans and comprehensive budgets which are prepared annually by the business areas and 

approved by the board; 
• formal standards of business conduct (including a code of ethics and whistleblowing procedure) based on 

honesty, integrity, fair dealing and compliance; 
• a well-established consolidation and reporting system for the accounts and monthly management 

accounts; 
• continual investment in IT systems to ensure the production of timely and accurate management 

information relating to the operation of the group’s businesses; and 
• detailed manuals covering accounting policies and policies and procedures for the treasury operations 

supplemented by internal control procedures at a business area level. 
 
The directors derived assurance from the following internal and external controls during 2016/17: 
• a regularly updated schedule of matters specifically reserved for a decision by the board; implementation of 

policies and procedures for key business activities; 
• an appropriate organisational structure; 
• specific delegations of authority for all financial transactions and other key technical and commercial 

decisions; 
• segregation of duties where appropriate and cost-effective; 
• business and financial reporting, including KPIs;  
• functional management reviews; 
• an annual “letters of assurance” process, through which functional managers review and confirm the 

adequacy of internal financial and non-financial controls and their compliance with group policies, and 
report any control weaknesses identified in the past year and actions taken in respect of weaknesses 
identified in the prior year; 

• an annual internal audit plan, which is approved by the audit committee and board and is driven by risks 
and key controls; 

• reports from the audit committee and risk committee; 
• reports from the external auditor on matters identified during its audit; 
• independent third party reviews; and 
• the skills and experience of all employees. 
 
The Group Chief Executive has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including the 
sources of assurance agreed by the boards as being appropriate for that purpose. The Group Chief Executive 
is satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to confirm that adequate systems of internal control existed and 
operated throughout the year and that those systems were aligned to an on-going process for management 
of the significant risks facing Synergy Housing Limited and its subsidiary. 
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Report of the Board (continued)

Attendance at board meetings

Total Possible* %

Non-executive directors

Andrew Jackson 11 12 92

Phillip Owens 11 12 92

Sally Higham 8 12 67

Steve Trusler 10 12 83

Arthur Merchant 5 6 83

Mary Watkins 9 12 75

Mike Biles 11 12 92

Andrew Kluth 6 6 100

Executive directors

Bjorn Howard 12 12 100

John Brace 11 12 92

Douglas Smith

Association Secretary

8 August 2017

*Possible attendance may be lower than the total number of meetings held due to the director only holding 
office for part of the year.  
 
 
Disclosure of information to auditors 
So far as the board is aware, there is no relevant information of which the company’s auditors are 
unaware. The board has taken all reasonable steps that ought to have been taken to make itself aware of 
any relevant audit information, and to establish the company’s auditors are aware of that information. 
 
Signed on behalf of the board. 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Independent Auditors' report to the members of Synergy Housing Limited

Report on the financial statements 
 
Our opinion 
 
In our opinion, Synergy Housing Limited’s financial statements (the “financial statements”): 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the registered provider’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of the registered 

provider’s profit for the year then ended; and 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the 

Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 
from April 2015. 

 
What we have audited 
 
The financial statements comprise:  
• the registered provider statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017; 
• the registered provider statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended; 
• the registered provider statement of changes in reserves for the year then ended; and 
•  the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 
 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland” and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
In applying the financial reporting framework, the board has made a number of subjective judgements, for example in 
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered 
future events. 
 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
Propriety of accounting records, system of internal control and information and explanations received 
 
Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• proper accounting records have not been kept by the registered provider; or 
• the registered provider financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records. 
 
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 
 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 
 
Our responsibilities and those of the board 
 
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities of the Board Statement, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 
 
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 
 
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the registered provider’s members as a body in 
accordance with Section 87 (2) of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for 
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where 
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 
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Independent Auditors' report to the members of Synergy Housing Limited 

(continued)

What an audit of financial statements involves 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of:  
• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the registered provider’s circumstances and have been consistently 

applied and adequately disclosed;  
• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the board; and 
• the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the board’s judgements against available evidence, forming our 
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements. 
 
We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to 
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of 
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.  
 
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and financial statements to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If 
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
  
  
  
John Maitland  
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 
Reading 
      September, 2017 
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Synergy Housing Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016

Note £000 £000

Turnover 5a 63,397      56,798      

Operating expenditure before impairment 5a (41,310)     (36,500)     

Operating profit before impairment 22,087      20,298      

Impairment of housing assets 5a 321           (1,425)       

Operating profit 5a,6 22,408      18,873      

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 371           253           

Profit on disposal of investment properties 10 117           -                

Increase in fair value of investment properties 17 582           303           

Profit before interest and taxation 23,478      19,429      

Interest receivable 11 1,115        472           

Interest payable and financing costs 11 (11,218)     (10,641)     

Interest on net pension liability 11 (526)          (504)          

Total finance income and expense (10,629)     (10,673)     

Profit before gift aid and tax 12,849      8,756        

Gift Aid received 12 891           60             

Taxation 13 -                -                

Profit for the year 13,740      8,816        

Other comprehensive (expense) / income 

Actuarial  (loss) / gain in respect of pension schemes 29 (2,022)       1,763        

Other comprehensive (expense) / income for the year (2,022)       1,763        

Total comprehensive income for the year 11,718      10,579      
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Synergy Housing Limited

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2017

2017 2016
Note £000 £000

Fixed assets
Intangible assets 14 903 1,053          

Property, plant and equipment (social housing) 15 517,673 495,240       

Property, plant and equipment (other assets) 16 2,119 2,391          

Investment properties 17 12,570 12,710         

Investment in subsidiaries 18 1,500 1,500          

534,765 512,894       
Current assets
Debtors: falling due after more than one year 19 14,106 1,265          

Debtors: falling due within one year 20 4,833 3,720          

Shared ownership properties held for resale 21 6,889 7,062          

Cash and cash equivalents 22 56,389 50,374         

82,217 62,421         

Creditors amounts falling due within one year 23  (13,952) (12,149)       

Net current assets 68,265 50,272         

Total assets less current liabilities 603,030 563,166       

Non-current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 24  (314,075) (288,153)     

Pension deficit 29  (17,097) (14,366)       

Provisions 30  (140) (647)

Net assets 271,718 260,000       

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 31 -                    -                  

Profit and loss reserve 105,757 93,201         

Revaluation reserve 32 165,961 166,799       

Total reserves 271,718 260,000       

Andrew Jackson John Brace Douglas Smith

Chairman Group Resources Director Association Secretary

Association number : 31447R

The financial statements on pages 18 to 69 were approved and authorised for issue by the board on 8 August 2017 and were 

signed on its behalf by:
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Synergy Housing Limited

Statement of Changes in Reserves

For the year ended 31 March 2017

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016 93,201           166,799        260,000    

Profit for the year 13,740           -                    13,740      

Other comprehensive expense for the year (2,022)            -                    (2,022)      

838                (838)              -               

Balance at 31 March 2017 105,757         165,961        271,718    

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2015 81,982           167,439        249,421    

Profit for the year              8,816                     - 8,816        

Other comprehensive income for the year 1,763             -                    1,763        

640                (640)              -               
Depreciation on excess of historic cost -                     -                    -               
Balance at 31 March 2016 93,201           166,799        260,000    

Transfer from revaluation reserve to profit and 

loss reserve

Transfer from revaluation reserve to profit and 

loss reserve

Profit and loss 

reserve

Revaluation 

reserve

Total 

reserves

2017

Profit and 

loss reserve

Revaluation 

reserve

Total 

reserves

2016
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1 General information  

2 Statement of compliance

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation 
  
These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, 
except as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial instruments measured at fair 
value through the profit or loss. The principal accounting policies, have been applied consistently throughout the 
years presented.  
 
Presentation 
Synergy Housing Limited has elected not to produce a Strategic Report, a Statement of Cash Flows, detailed 
disclosures of financial instruments, disclosures relating to transactions with related parties and disclosure 
relating to key management compensation in line with exemptions available within FRS 102 and the Housing 
SORP 2014.  
 
These disclosures are included in the group’s consolidated financial statements.     
  
Paragraph 9.3 of FRS 102 allows immediate parent organisations to opt out of consolidating the financial results 
of subsidiaries  providing they are consolidated into the ultimate parents financial statements. Zebra Property 
Solutions Limited financial results are consolidated into the financial statements of Aster Group Limited, its 
ultimate parent and not the financial results of Synergy Housing Limited. 

Synergy Housing Limited (the association) is a member of the Aster Group (the group). Its primary function is 
to provide social housing and other related services to its customers. The company is a Housing Association 
registered with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) as a Registered Provider as defined by the 
Housing Act 2004. It is also a Charitable Co-operative and Community Benefit Society.  The principal 
accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the year, are set out in note 3. 

The financial statements of the association have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting 
Standards in the United Kingdom, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 102). The financial statements 
comply with Schedule 1 of the Housing Act 2004, the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of 
social housing 2015 and the Statement of Recommended Practice (‘SORP 2014’) published by the National 
Housing Federation (‘NHF’) in 2014. The association is classified as a Public Benefit Entity under FRS 102.  
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Operating profit 
  
Synergy Housing Limited has chosen to show operating profit on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.  This figure represents income, less the costs and expenses incurred to generate it, from the 
association's principal activities that are not investing or financing activities.     
 
Turnover 
  
Turnover represents: 
 
Rental, service charge income and garage lettings - recognised from the point at which the properties under 
development reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting. 
 
Service charge income - an amalgamation of the budgeted charge for the year and the under or over recovery 
from the pre-previous year; 
 
Revenue fees and grants from local authorities and the Home and Communities Agency - recognised in income 
over the period the related costs are incurred; 
 
Asset related fees and grants from local authorities and the Home and Communities Agency - recognised in 
income over the life of the related asset; 
 
Income from first tranche sales of New Build Home Buy and housing properties developed for sale - recognised 
at the legal completion of the sale; 
  
Other income, such as domiciliary care and sewerage services - recognised when the income falls due as a 
result of performing a service or otherwise meeting the requirements of any arrangement with a third party.    
 
 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 22



Synergy Housing Limited

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Property managed by agents 
  
The association has a small number of properties that it owns but are managed by agents on its behalf. 
Where the association carries the financial risk on property managed by agents, all the income and 
expenditure arising from the property is included in the profit or loss for the period. Where the agency 
carries the financial risk, the profit or loss for the period includes only that income and expenditure which 
relates solely to the association. 
  
Value added tax (VAT) 
  
The association is registered for VAT and, while turnover is stated excluding VAT, a large portion of its 
income, including its rents, is exempt for VAT purposes. The majority of its expenditure is subject to VAT 
which cannot be reclaimed and therefore expenditure is shown inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. The balance 
of VAT payable or recoverable at the year-end is included as a current liability or asset. 
 
Right to buy 
  
The profit or loss on disposal of housing properties under the right to buy arrangement is calculated as 
being the difference between the proceeds of sale of a property and the carrying value of that property.  
The gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the profit or loss for the period at the date of transfer after 
adjusting for any local authority claw back agreement in operation. The local authority claw back is 
recognised as a liability until it is repaid to the authority. 
  
Right to acquire 
  
The profit or loss on the disposal of housing properties under the right to acquire arrangement is calculated 
as being the difference between the proceeds of sale of a property and the carrying value of that property.  
Any loss on disposal is recognised in the profit or loss for the period at the date of transfer, any gain on 
disposal less allowable deductions is credited to the disposal proceeds fund to be recycled or repaid to the 
Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) if not used within the specified time period. 
  
New Build Home Buy (Shared ownership) 
  
The cost of developing New Build Home Buy properties is split between current assets for that part of the 
property which is expected to be sold by way of a first tranche sale and property, plant and equipment for 
the remaining part of the property which is expected to be retained. 
 
First tranche sales on New Build Home Buy properties are recognised in turnover, with an appropriate 
proportion of development build costs being expensed through cost of sales.   
 
Subsequent tranches sold (‘staircasing’) are reflected in the profit or loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment. Such staircasing sales may result in social housing grant being deferred or abated until it can 
be recycled or repaid. Cost includes the acquisition of land and buildings, the cost of developing properties, 
plus expenditure incurred in respect of improvements. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Intangible assets and amortisation – computer software 
  
Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance such as computer 
software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Cost includes the original 
purchase price of the asset and any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use.  
Amortisation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected remaining useful lives (UEL) of the 
assets as follows:  
      UEL   
 Computer software     3 years 
 Main computer systems software  10 years   
 
Social housing properties and depreciation 
  
Properties rented for Social Benefit are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment and referred to as 
Social Housing. These properties are rented at below market rate to people put forward by the relevant 
local authorities from their housing lists. Social housing properties under construction are stated at cost and 
are not depreciated. These are reclassified as social housing properties on practical completion of 
construction with cost apportioned by key components. 
 
Freehold land is not depreciated.  The association depreciates freehold properties by component on a 
straight line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the component categories. 
 
Social housing properties are split between the structure and those major components which require 
periodic replacement. Capitalised major components are depreciated over the following useful economic 
lives (UEL): 
 
 Component    UEL  
 Structure (see below)   30 - 100 years  
 Roof    60 years 
  Heating Distribution Systems  30 years 
 Boiler    15 years 
 Bathroom    30 years  
 Windows/Doors   30 years  
 Kitchen    20 years  
 Electrical wiring   30 years 
  
  
Impairment reviews are carried out at each reporting date. If impairment is present the asset’s carrying 
value is reduced to its depreciated replacement cost, as outlined in the impairment policy, unless it is being 
demolished or remodelled when the carrying value is reduced to that of the remaining components.    
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Social housing properties and depreciation (continued) 
 
The association depreciates social housing properties held on long leases in the same manner as 
freehold properties, except where the unexpired lease term is shorter than the longest component life 
envisaged, in which case the unexpired term of the lease is adopted as the useful economic life of the 
relevant component category. 
 
New Build Home Buy properties are split proportionately between property, plant and equipment and 
current assets based on the proportion of the share of equity sold in the first tranche. The element of a 
property anticipated to be sold as a first tranche sale is recognised as a current asset, whereas the 
element relating to second and subsequent tranche sales is treated as property, plant and equipment. If 
the profit on sale of the first tranche is expected to exceed the total overall profit on sale of all tranches of 
that property the proportionate value of the first tranche current asset is increased to limit the profit 
earned to the overall profit.    
    
Depreciation on freehold properties and long leasehold social housing properties is provided to write off 
the cost less the estimated residual value of social housing properties by equal instalments over their 
remaining estimated useful economic life (UEL). Any additions and improvements are depreciated over 
the remaining life of the premises. The useful economic lives used are: 
 
 Structure    UEL 
 Pre-fabricated reinforced concrete construction (PRC)   30 years 
 Bedsits      30 years 
 All other social housing properties  100 years 
  
Freehold land is not depreciated 
   
The association elected to take the transitional exemption laid out in paragraph 35.10(d) of FRS 102 and 
elected to use the 31 March 2014 valuation as the deemed cost of social housing properties to that date. 
All social housing properties completed after that date are recognised at cost. 
 
Donated land 
 
Land donated by local authorities and others is added to cost of the development scheme at the market 
value of the land at the time of the donation. The market value is recognised as a government grant if the 
land is donated by a local authority and accounted for using the accruals method. If the land is donated 
by a non-government party the market value is recognised as income in the profit or loss for the period. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation, non-social housing  
  
Property, plant and equipment, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original 
purchase price of the asset and the costs incurred in bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
where it increases the value of the asset or extends its life. Completed social housing properties are 
covered by a separate policy. Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected remaining 
economic useful lives of the assets as follows:  
 
     UEL  
 Freehold offices   50 years  
 Motor vehicles   4 – 5 years  
 Office, estate equipment and furniture  3 – 15 years 
   
Freehold premises (non-social housing properties) depreciation is provided to write off the cost less 
estimated residual value over the useful economic life of the property. Any additions and improvements are 
depreciated over the remaining life of the premises. 
 
Assets under construction are stated at cost (as defined above). They are presented separately in the note 
to the financial statements and not depreciated until they are completed and brought into use. The useful 
economic lives of all property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually. 
  
Capitalisation of internal staff costs 
  
a) Housing development schemes 
Internal staff costs that are directly related to the development of housing assets are capitalised to the 
schemes under construction where the outcome of the scheme is certain. Where the outcome of the 
scheme is uncertain or aborted, the direct development administration costs are charged to the profit or loss 
for the period. 
 
b) Development of internally created assets 
Internal staffing costs relating to internally created other tangible or intangible assets are capitalised to the 
extent that they are additional costs incurred due to the development of the asset. 
   
An internally generated intangible asset is only recognised if all the following conditions are met:  
• The asset created can be identified (such as software or a website);  
• It is expected that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and  
• The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.  

 
Internally generated intangible assets are recognised at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
useful lives from the date the asset becomes usable. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Capitalisation of interest costs 
  
Interest costs relating to the construction and acquisition of housing assets are charged to the cost of the 
development scheme, over the period of its development. The amount capitalised represents either: 
• Interest costs incurred specifically for financing the development programme after the deduction of Social 

Housing Grant in advance; or 
• Interest costs of the Group as a whole after the deduction of interest on Social Housing Grant in advance 

to the extent that they are funding the development programme. 
 
Other interest costs are recognised in the profit or loss for the period to which they relate. 
 
Leased assets 
  
Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership, they are treated as if they had been purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the lower of 
the present value of the minimum lease payments payable during the lease term or the fair value of the 
leased asset. The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as the present value of the obligations to 
the lessor. Lease payments are treated as consisting of a finance charge and a reduction in the liability. The 
finance charge is charged to surplus or deficit for the period using the effective interest method. 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss for the period on a straight line basis 
over the period of the lease. 
 
Investment properties 
  
Investment properties are properties held for capital appreciation, rental at a market rate where there are no 
restrictions on who can be a tenant, or both.  
  
Investment properties are re-valued each year to their fair or market value. Any changes in value are 
recognised in the surplus or deficit for the period when they occur.  
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Inventories 
 
a) General inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making allowances for any 
obsolete and/or slow moving items. Net realisable value is the price which inventories can be sold for in the 
normal course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation.  Inventories are valued using a first-in-
first-out methodology. 
  
b) Properties identified for disposal 
Where a decision has been taken to dispose of housing properties, these are included under inventories. 
These properties are held at the lower of historical cost less depreciation, or net realisable value. Cost 
comprises materials, direct labour, direct development overheads and attributable interest. Net realisable 
value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all further costs of completion and disposal. 
 
c) Properties developed for market sale 
Properties that have been developed for market sale are recognised at cost less cost to sell. Cost 
comprises materials, direct labour, direct development overheads and attributable interest. Sales proceeds 
are included in turnover.     
  
Impairment 
  
a) Inventories 
At the end of each reporting period inventories are reviewed for impairment. If any inventory is found to be 
impaired the carrying value is reduced to the selling price less costs to complete and sell.  
 
b) Other tangible and intangible assets  
Other tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that impairment 
may have occurred. Where there is evidence of impairment, the affected assets are written down to the 
recoverable amount. Any such write down is charged to the profit  or loss for the period. 
 
c) Social Housing 
Social Housing properties are subject to impairment reviews on completion and then annually thereafter. If 
there is evidence of impairment, the carrying value of the property is compared to its depreciated 
replacement cost. This represents the amount it would cost the company to replace the property.  For 
properties built or acquired prior to 1 April 2014 this replacement cost is depreciated from 1 April 2014. For 
properties built or acquired after 1 April 2014 depreciation starts from the build or acquisition date. If the 
property’s carrying value is higher than its depreciated replacement cost the carrying value must be 
reduced to the depreciated replacement cost, the write down is charged to profit or loss for the period.     
 
The group has some pre-fabricated reinforced concrete construction properties and bedsits. Where an 
impairment review indicates that their useful economic life is likely to be less than the standard policy they 
have been re-lifed to 10 years. 
  
d) Unsold first tranche Home Buy current assets 
On practical completion Home Buy property assets are spilt between current assets for the unsold first 
tranche portion and property, plant and equipment for the rental portion.  
 
First tranche current assets are reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the market value of the 
property has dropped below that included in the investment appraisal. If any current assets are found to be 
impaired the carrying value is reduced to the selling price less costs to complete and sell. 
  
The rental portion is treated as social housing for impairment purposes. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Accrued income 
 
When, as a result of performing a service or otherwise meeting the requirements of any arrangement 
with a third party, income falls due but has not been invoiced in the period, an accrual is made for this 
income. 
 
Deferred income 
  
Where payment has been received for goods or services not yet delivered, the amount is initially 
recorded as a liability in the Statement of Financial Position and recognised as revenue once the 
delivery has been made. 
 
Service charge sinking funds 
 
The association owns a number of schemes which require it to manage sinking funds in order to 
maintain the upkeep of the properties. These funds are held separately by the association, and may only 
be used for the benefit of the relevant schemes. These funds are held in creditors on the Statement of 
Financial Position. 
 
Financial instruments  
  
Section 11 Basic Financial Instruments of FRS 102 permits an accounting policy choice for financial 
instruments. The association has chosen to adopt sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 as permitted by this 
section.  
  
a) Rent arrears and other debts 
Rent arrears, other amounts due from tenants and other miscellaneous debts are recognised and 
carried at original amount of the charge, less provision for impairment. A provision is made and charged 
to the surplus or deficit for the period when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to 
collect all amounts due in accordance to the original terms. 
  
Any tenants or miscellaneous debtors who have a payment arrangement to pay their debts over a 
period of longer than the association's normal terms of business are treated as having a financing 
transaction. These transactions are recognised at their present value rather than transaction value. The 
discount rate used for the present value calculation is based upon an estimate of the rate the debtor 
could obtain in their own right. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) 
 
b) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less. 
  
c)   Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
  
d)  Trade payables 
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their amortised cost. 
 
e) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised at amortised cost.  
  
f) Committed borrowings and bank overdrafts 
Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amounts received, net of direct issue costs, using 
the effective interest method. Direct issue costs are amortised over the period of the loans and overdrafts to 
which they relate. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption, are charged 
to the profit or loss for the period as incurred using the effective interest rate method and are added to the 
carrying value of the borrowings or overdraft to the extent they are not settled in the period in which they 
arise. 
  
When the association enters into a loan facility agreement any associated costs are capitalised, discounted 
at the prevailing market rate of interest amortised over the life of the related loans. 
  
Social housing grant 
  

Social housing grant (SHG) is receivable from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA). It is accounted 
for under section 24 of FRS 102 ‘Government Grants’ using the accrual model. Once properties have been 
completed the grant is classified as a long-term creditor and amortised to the profit or loss for the period over 
the life of the properties’ structure. Where grants are paid in advance, they are included in creditors until 
performance is completed.  
 
If a property which received a grant is subsequently sold, or another relevant event takes place the SHG 
appears as a creditor. It can be recycled for use in a project approved by the HCA or repaid to the HCA if it 
is not used within the agreed timescale.  
 
Other government grants 
 
Other Government grants received are also accounted for under section 24 of FRS 102 using the Accrual 
Model. 
 
Government grants are recognised in income over periods in which the association recognises the related 
costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. 
 
When part of the government grant is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and 
allocated between due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Pension Costs 
  
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is accounted for in accordance with Section 
28 of FRS 102 ‘Employee Benefits’.  
 
Synergy Housing Limited participates in four pension schemes. There is one Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) which is the Dorset County Council Pension Fund. There are three separate schemes with 
the Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’). 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme.  The asset 
for this scheme is held separately from those of the association in independently administered funds.  
Pension scheme assets are measured in accordance with the FRS 102 fair value hierarchy.  Pension 
scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit actuarial method and are discounted at the current 
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability. 
 

The increase in the present value of the liabilities of the association's defined benefit pension scheme 
expected to arise from employee service in the period is charged to operating profit.  The expected return on 
the schemes’ assets and the increase during the year in the present value of the schemes’ liabilities arising 
from the passage of time are included in operating costs.  Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that 
they are considered recoverable, or deficits, are recognised in full and presented on the face of the 
Statement of Financial Position net of the related deferred tax. Actuarial gains and losses which arise from 
the difference between actual and expected performance of the scheme are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.  
 

All LGPS schemes are closed to new starters. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Pension Costs (continued) 
 
There are three separate SHPS schemes.  The SHPS defined benefit scheme based on final salary was 
closed to new starters with effect from October 2010.  Employees now have a choice of joining the SHPS 
defined benefit scheme based on a career average of earnings, or a SHPS defined contributions 
(‘stakeholder’) scheme.   
 
At the period end, SHPS are unable to provide sufficient information to calculate the association's share of 
assets and liabilities on the defined benefits schemes and so all SHPS schemes are accounted in the same 
way as a defined contribution scheme, with contributions being expensed as they fall due. 
 
Where the SHPS scheme is in deficit and where the association has agreed, with the SHPS scheme, to 
participate in a deficit funding arrangement the association recognises a liability for this obligation. The 
amount recognised is the net present value of the contributions payable under the agreement that relate to 
the deficit. This amount is expensed in the profit or loss for the period. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as a finance cost.  
   
 
Provisions 
  
a) General provisions 
  
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet where the association has an obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount of 
provision is re-assessed each year in the light of estimated future income and costs as appropriate. 
 
b) Termination benefits  
 
Termination benefits are only recognised once a formal plan has been approved by the association's senior 
management.   
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4 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.   
 

Critical judgements in applying the association's accounting policies   
 

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme 
The association participates in two multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, one based 
on final salary and one based on a career average of earnings, both provided by the Social 
Housing Pension Scheme. In the judgement of the directors, the association does not have 
sufficient information on the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share 
of the defined benefit obligation and plan assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a 
defined contribution scheme, see note 29 for further details.   
    
Fair value 
The directors have made the following judgements regarding fair value: 
 
If land is donated to the association at below market cost it is recognised at its fair value. The 
directors judge this to be its market value at the time of the donation.   
 
Investment properties are recognised each year at their fair value. The directors judge this to be 
their market value at the end of the reporting period.  
 
Indexation uplifting in leases 
Several of the association's lease arrangements have an indexation uplift included in their terms 
and conditions by the lessor. These contract terms are typical for the sector and so 
management judges these leases to be operating leases within the scope of FRS 102 section 
20: 'Leases' and recognises them under the appropriate classification within this section. 
  
Loans with embedded callable options   
The association uses different types of financial instruments to fund its development activities. 
Some have the form of a fixed rate loan with an embedded callable option that gives the lender 
the right to change the interest rate to variable at a certain date, the call date. The group’s 
management judges that these financial instruments fall under section 11 'Basic Financial 
Instruments' of FRS 102 and so recognise them as fixed rated loans using the effective interest 
rate method.   
 
Exemptions on transition to FRS 102  
The association has elected to use the previous UK GAAP valuation of its social housing 
properties as deemed cost in transition to FRS 102. The assets are depreciated from the date of 
transition (1 April 2014) in accordance with the company’s accounting policies.  
 
Cash generating units 
When reviewing Social Housing Properties for impairment the directors are required to consider 
the level of cash generating unit. For impairment purposes, the directors consider that each 
individual property constitutes a cash generating unit as it generates cash flows that are largely 
independent of the cash flows generated by other assets.      
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4 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
  
The association makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are addressed below. 
 
Useful lives of social housing property assets 
 
Social housing property assets are split into their component parts, with each component being 
depreciated over a separate estimated useful economic life. The annual depreciation charge for social 
housing property assets in total is sensitive to changes in these estimated useful economic lives. The 
useful economic lives of individual components are re-assessed as part of a rolling stock condition survey, 
examining 20% of the stock annually, and amended where necessary. See note 3 for the useful economic 
lives for each class of component.    
 
Rebalancing surpluses from Home Buy first tranche sales 
 
Where social housing development schemes consist of social rental and Home Buy properties the cost of 
development is split between the individual properties by property classification. As these costs cannot be 
accurately assigned to individual properties management assumes that they are evenly spread by floor 
area.  
 
The Home Buy property costs are then further split between the percentage of the property to remain as 
property, plant and equipment and the current asset based on the percentage to be sold as the first 
tranche sale.  
 

The exception to this treatment is where the overall surplus of the scheme, including social rental 
properties, is less than the surplus to be recognised for the first tranche sale. The surplus for the entire 
scheme is calculated by taking the present value of the net cash flows expected to be generated by the 
scheme over a period of 30 years, (its Existing Use Valuation – social housing (EUV-SH)), value away 
from the cost of the scheme. If the resulting surplus is smaller than the surplus on the first trance sales 
alone the first tranche surplus must be restricted to that of the total scheme. This is achieved by 
transferring costs from property, plant and equipment to the current asset until the excess surplus is 
removed.  
   

Depreciated replacement cost depreciation start date 
 
Properties owned prior to 1 April 2014 are recognised at their 31 March 2014 valuation or deemed cost. 
When these properties are assessed for impairment using the depreciated replacement cost model 
management assume the depreciation starts from 1 April 2014 rather than the properties' construction 
date. This assumption is based on the properties' deemed cost being its Existing Value in Use - Social 
Housing (EUV-SH) representing the value of its service potential.    
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4 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued) 
 

Impairment of debtors 
 
Synergy Housing Limited makes an estimate of the recoverable value of rent arrears and other debtors. When 
assessing these debts for impairment, management considers factors including the status of the tenant, 
(current or former), the aging profile of the debtors and historical experience. Former tenant debts are 
assumed to be impaired and so are fully provided for. Current tenant debts which have an arrangement to pay 
over the period greater than 12 months are discounted, to reflect the time value of money. See note 20 for the 
net carrying amount of the debtors and the associated impairment provision.  
 

Defined benefit pension scheme 
 
The association has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits 
and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including life expectancy, salary 
increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in 
the determining the net pension obligation in the statement of financial position. The assumptions reflect 
historical experience and current trends. See note 29 for the disclosures relating to defined benefit pension 
schemes.   
 

Early repayment clauses in loan facility agreements 
 

Within the association's loan documentation there are clauses that allow the early repayment of the loans, 
subject to the payment of breakage cost and compensation. The breakage and compensation payments can 
either be payable to the lender or receivable by the borrower.  The association's management judges that the 
effect of these clauses does not breach the conditions laid out in paragraph 11.9 of section 11 'Basic 
Financial Instruments' of FRS 102 and so recognise the related loans as being classified as basic.   
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5 Turnover, operating expenditure and operating profit
5a

Note

£000 £000 £000

Income and expenditure from lettings

Housing accommodation before impairment 5b 51,775     (30,909)         20,866     

Other income and expenditure 

Social Housing

Housing services provided to third parties 17            -                    17            

Properties managed by agents 281          -                    281          

Community involvement and transform 57            (164)              (107)         

First tranche shared ownership 10,000     (9,557)           443          

Development costs not capitalised -               (342)              (342)         

10,355     (10,063)         292          

Non-social Housing

Garage lettings 482           (43) 439          

Sewerage services 9              (24)                (15)           

Market rented properties 776          (271)              505          

Other -               -                    -               

1,267       (338)              929          

Total 63,397     (41,310)         22,087     

Operating profit before impairment 22,087     

Net impairment of housing assets 321          

Operating profit 22,408     

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2017

Turnover

Operating 

expenditure

Operating 

profit 

/(loss)

Net impairment of housing properties includes the reversal of impairment charged in the previous year relating to one 
of the development schemes where costs were agreed at a lower figure than estimated last year. Part of this reversal 
has been offset by the impairment of a block of flats which have been demolished.  
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5 Turnover, operating expenditure and operating profit (continued)

5a

Note

£000 £000 £000

Income and expenditure from lettings

Housing accommodation before impairment 5b 50,041     (30,898)      19,143     

Other income and expenditure 

Housing services provided to third parties 20            1                 21            

Properties managed by agents 276          -                 276          

Community involvement and transform 54            (271)           (217)         

First tranche shared ownership 5,200       (5,053)        147          

Other -               (28)             (28)           

5,550       (5,351)        199          

Non-social Housing
Garage lettings 452          (67)             385          

Sewerage services 4              -                 4              

Market rented properties 751          (167)           584          

Other -               (17)             (17)           

1,207       (251)           956          

Total 56,798     (36,500)      20,298     

Operating profit before impairment 20,298     

Impairment of housing properties 5b (1,425)      

Operating profit 18,873     

An impairment review of housing assets was triggered as a result of the Chancellor of the Exchequer reducing social

rents until 2020. Impairment occurs when the carrying value of the asset is greater than its depreciated replacement

cost. In these instances the carrying value is reduced. This affected 97 social housing units with a carrying value

prior to impairment of £9 million.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016

Turnover

Operating 

expenditure

Operating 

profit 

/(loss)

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 37



Synergy Housing Limited

5 Turnover, operating expenditure and operating profit (continued)

5b Income and expenditure from lettings

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income

Rents 37,823     8,683         1,131          5              47,642     

Service charges 811          2,619         393             -               3,823       

Amortised government grants 56            -                 17               -               73            

Other revenue grants 200          26              10               1              237          

Total net rents from lettings 38,890     11,328       1,551          6              51,775     

Expenditure

Management (7,571)      (23)             -                  -               (7,594)      

Services (2,070)      (1,861)        (151)            (2)             (4,084)      

Routine maintenance (4,469)      -                 -                  -               (4,469)      

Planned maintenance (2,412)      -                 -                  -               (2,412)      

Major improvements and repairs (4,155)      -                 -                  -               (4,155)      

Bad debts (313)         (57)             -                  (1)             (371)         

Depreciation of housing properties (6,232)      (1,237)        (143)            -               (7,612)      

(204)         (8)               -                  -               (212)         

Operating expenditure on housing lettings (27,426)    (3,186)        (294)            (3)             (30,909)    

11,464     8,142         1,257          3              20,866     

Net reversal of impairment of housing assets 321          -                    -                     -                   321          

11,785     8,142         1,257          3              21,187     

Void losses 87 84 2 -                   173

Operating profit on lettings activities

Rental income is stated net of void losses as 

set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Shared 

Ownership Other Total

General 

Needs 

Housing

Supported 

Housing

2017

Operating profit on lettings activities 

before impairment

Accelerated depreciation on component 

disposals

Net impairment of housing properties includes the reversal of impairment charged in the previous year relating to one 
of the groups' schemes where costs were agreed at a lower figure than estimated last year. Part of this reversal has 
been offset by the impairment of a block of flats which have been demolished.  
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5 Turnover, operating expenditure and operating profit (continued)

5b Income and expenditure from lettings (continued)

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income

Rents 37,017     8,612         883             7              46,519   

Service charges 851          2,256         236             -               3,343     

Amortised government grants (54)           -                 -                  -               (54)         

Other revenue grants 183          41              9                 -               233        

Total net rents from lettings 37,997     10,909       1,128          7              50,041   

Expenditure

Management (8,991)      (51)             (36)              -               (9,078)    

Services (1,147)      (2,161)        (176)            (4)             (3,488)    

Routine maintenance (3,600)      (828)           -                  (7)             (4,435)    

Planned maintenance (2,031)      (467)           -                  -               (2,498)    

Major improvements and repairs (4,007)      (210)           -                  -               (4,217)    

Bad debts (292)         (72)             -                  -               (364)       

Depreciation of housing properties (5,382)      (1,071)        (76)              -               (6,529)    

(234)         (55)             -                  -               (289)       
Other costs -               -                 -                  -               -             

Operating expenditure on housing lettings (25,684)    (4,915)        (288)            (11)           (30,898)  

12,313     5,994         840             (4)             19,143   

Impairment of housing properties (1,425)      -                 -                  -               (1,425)    

10,888     5,994         840             (4)             17,718   

Void losses 98 95 4                 3              200        

Rental income is stated net of void losses as 

set out below:

Operating profit /(loss) on lettings activities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

General 

Needs 

Housing

Supported 

Housing Other

Shared 

Ownership

Operating profit /(loss) on lettings activities 

before impairment

Accelerated depreciation on component 

disposals

2016
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6 Operating profit

2017 2016

£000 £000

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Auditors'  remuneration (including irrecoverable VAT)

In their capacity as auditors:

Financial statements audit 17            13            

Non-audit services -               -               

Depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment - social housing 7,612       6,529       

Property, plant and equipment - loss on write off of components 212          249          

Property, plant and equipment - other assets 276          381          

Amortisation of intangible assets 150          149          

(Net reversal of impairment)/impairment of housing assets (321)         1,425       

Profit on shared ownership properties (443)         (147)         

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (371)         60            

Operating lease payments:
Land and buildings                5                5 

Office premises            224            357 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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7 Directors' emoluments

Members of the executive board and executive management team

Non-executive directors

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Synergy Housing Limited did not directly employ any members of the executive board. The association did employ 
one member of the executive management team during the year, this was recharged to Aster Group so that their 
services could be recharged out along with other members via the group overheads. This recharge included £nil 
(2016: £nil) for executive directors' services and £210,000 (2016: £205,000) for the executive team's services. 
These amounts are included in the association's profit for the year. Full details of the executive directors' and 
executive management team's emoluments are disclosed in Aster Group's consolidated financial statements. 
 

Synergy Housing Limited board operates as part of the Group Overlap Board. The non-executive directors are 
paid by Aster Group Limited.  A charge of £52,000 (2016: £55,000) was made for their services via the group 
overheads recharge to the association. This amount is included in the profit for the year. Full details of the non-
executive directors' emoluments are disclosed in Aster Group's consolidated financial statements.     
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8 Employee information
2017 2016

No. No.

193          214          

FTE by salary bands:

2017 2016

No. No.

£59,999 or less 190          211          

£80,000 to £89,999 2              2              

£140,000 to £149,999 1              -               

£150,000 to £159,999 -               1              

193          214          

2017 2016

Staff costs: £000 £000

Wages and salaries 6,254       6,891       

Social security costs 684          658          

Other pension costs 711          818          

7,649       8,367       

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The average number of persons employed during the 

year (full time equivalents) based on 37 hours per week

Salary includes salary, car allowance and any acting up allowances, but excludes pension contributions made by 
the group. 
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9 Profit /(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Right to buy 1,132       (1,223)      (91)         1,012       (850)         162        

Right to acquire 130          (130)         -             150          (150)         -             

Shared ownership staircasing 303          (205)         98           195          (149)         46          

2,950       (2,950)      -             -               -               -             

Void property disposals 488          (184)         304         -               -               -             

Others 86            (26)           60           -               (268)         (268)       

Total social housing 5,089       (4,718)      371         1,357       (1,417)      (60)         

Office premises -               -               -             269          (95)           174        

Land sales -               -               -             139          -               139        

Total other assets -               -               -             408          (95)           313        

Total 5,089       (4,718)      371         1,765       (1,512)      253        

Legal and other related costs are included in cost of sales.

10 Profit /(loss) on disposal of investment properties 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Investment properties 845          (728)         117         -               -               -             

2017 2016

Proceeds

Cost of 

Sales Profit Proceeds

Cost of 

Sales

Profit / 

(loss)

Transfer of proprties to a fellow 

group company

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016

Proceeds

Cost of 

Sales

Profit / 

(loss)Proceeds

Cost of 

Sales

(Loss) / 

Profit

2017

During the year ended 31 March 2017 six investment properties held for market rental were disposed of. 
Legal and other related costs are included in cost of sales.  
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11 Finance income and expense

Interest receivable

2017 2016
£000 £000

Interest on short term deposits 323          368        

709          41          

1,032       409        

Unwinding of trade debtor discounting 83            63          

1,115       472        

Interest payable and financing cost

Fixed rate loans (6,666)      (6,284)    
Floating rate loans (340)         (141)       

Loans with group other companies (4,870)      (4,872)    
Less interest capitalised 1,000       1,094     

(10,876)    (10,203)  

Amortisation of arrangement fees (69)           (85)         

Administration Charge (160)         (218)       

Amortisation of issue costs -               -             

(11,105)    (10,506)  

Movement in SHPS recovery plan liability creditor discounting (4)             (3)           

Reduction in rent debts over 12 months (109)         (132)       

(11,218)    (10,641)  

Interest on net pension liability

Note

Local government pension schemes 29 (526)         (504)       

Total finance income and expense (10,629)    (10,673)  

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Total interest income on financial assets not measured at fair value 

through profit or loss

Total interest income on financial liabilities not measured at fair 

value through profit or loss

Interest receivable from Zebra Property Solutions Limited and 

Aster Homes Limited 
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12 Gift aid received
2017 2016

£000 £000

Gift aid received from subsidiary 891            60               

13 Taxation

14 Intangible assets

2017 2016

£000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2,058         2,126          

Additions -                 13               

Disposals -                 (81)              

At 31 March 2,058         2,058          

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April 1,005         937             

Charge for year 150            149             

Disposals -                 (81)              

At 31 March 1,155         1,005          

Net book value 903            1,053          

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Computer 

software

Computer 

software

The association has charitable rules registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and is 
therefore not liable to Corporation Tax on its charitable activities. 
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15 Property, plant and equipment (social housing)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 15,630           471,755      3,681             18,130        509,196          

Additions 16,118           75               20,607           -                 36,800            

Components -                     2,922          -                     -                 2,922              

Disposal of components -                     (422)            -                     -                 (422)                

Net impairment -                     321             -                     -                 321                 

Completions (17,442)          17,442        -                     -                 -                      

Transfer (to)/from current assets -                     -                  (17,883)          9,134          (8,749)             

Disposals -                     (919)            -                     (190)           (1,109)             

At 31 March 2017 14,306           491,174      6,405             27,074        538,959          

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2016 -                     13,716        -                     240             13,956            

Charge for year -                     7,468          -                     144             7,612              

Disposal of components -                     (210)            -                     -                 (210)                

Disposals -                     (68)              -                     (4)               (72)                  

At 31 March 2017 -                     20,906        -                     380             21,286            

Net book value at 31 March 2017            14,306        470,268               6,405         26,694            517,673 

Value of completed social housing properties

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Valuation -                     400,490      -                     28,390        428,880          

Net book value at 31 March 2017 -                     400,490      -                     28,390        428,880          

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Shared 

Ownership 

completed Total

Housing 

properties 

under 

construction

Completed  

housing 

properties

Shared 

Ownership 

under 

construction

2017

The above valuation was carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited Chartered Surveyors, on 31st March 2017, on the

basis of Existing Use Value - Social Housing. The valuations were carried out in accordance with RICS Appraisal and

Valuation Manual effective from 1 January 1996 (as amended).

Existing Use Valuation - Social 

Housing

The cost of completed properties during the year includes £1.0 million of capitalised borrowing costs at an average rate of

2.8%. 

Housing 

properties 

under 

construction

Completed  

housing 

properties

Shared 

Ownership 

under 

construction

Shared 

Ownership 

completed Total

On transition to FRS 102 Synergy Housing Limited elected to take the transitional exemption laid out in paragraph 
35.10(d) of FRS 102 and is using the 31 March 2014 valuation as the deemed cost of social housing properties held at 
that date. All social housing properties completed or acquired after that date are recognised at cost. 

Net impairment of housing properties includes the reversal of impairment charged in the previous year relating to one of the 
Radipole development scheme where costs have been agreed at a lower figure than estimated last year. Part of this 
reversal has been offset by the impairment of a block of flats which have been demolished.  
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15 Property, plant and equipment (social housing) (continued)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2015 16,130           440,589      3,717             15,906        476,342          

Additions 29,380           205             12,161           -                 41,746            

Components -                     3,773          -                     -                 3,773              

Disposal of components -                     (429)            -                     -                 (429)                

Impairment -                     (1,425)         -                     -                 (1,425)             

Completions (29,716)          29,716        -                     -                 -                      

Transfer to investment properties (164)               -                  -                     -                 (164)                

Transfer (to)/from current assets -                     -                  (12,197)          2,872          (9,325)             

Disposals -                     (674)            -                     (648)           (1,322)             

At 31 March 2016 15,630           471,755      3,681             18,130        509,196          

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2015 -                     7,506          -                     126             7,632              

Charge for year -                     6,412          -                     117             6,529              

Impairment -                     -                  -                     -                 -                      

Disposal of components -                     (180)            -                     -                 (180)                

Disposals -                     (22)              -                     (3)               (25)                  

At 31 March 2016 -                     13,716        -                     240             13,956            

Net book value at 31 March 2016            15,630        458,039               3,681         17,890            495,240 

Net book value of Property, plant and equipment - Social Housing by tenure

2017 2016
£000 £000

Freehold 517,162      494,727          

Long leasehold 511             513                 

Net book value 517,673      495,240          

The cost of completed properties during the year includes £1.1 million of capitalised borrowing costs at an average rate of 

4.5% 

2016

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Housing 

properties 

under 

construction

Completed  

housing 

properties

Shared 

Ownership 

under 

construction

Shared 

Ownership 

completed Total
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16 Property, plant and equipment (other assets)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 -                 880            -                     23           3,516           613             5,032       

Additions -                 3                -                     -              1                  -                 4              

Disposals -                 -                 -                     -              -                   -                 -               

At 31 March 2017 -                 883            -                     23           3,517           613             5,036       

At 1 April 2016 -                 125            -                     12           1,891           613             2,641       

Charge for year -                 19              -                     6             251              -                 276          

Disposals -                 -                 -                     -              -                   -                 -               

At 31 March 2017 -                 144            -                     18           2,142           613             2,917       

                 -             739                      -              5             1,375                   -         2,119 

-                 755            -                     11           1,625           -                 2,391       

Accumulated 

depreciation

Net book value at 

31 March 2017

Net book value at 31 

March 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Assets under 

construction

Motor 

vehicles

Office & 

estate 

equipment & 

furniture

Computer 

equipment Total

Office 

premises

Leasehold 

office 

improve-

ments

2017

Office premises were disposed of in the financial year 2015/16, leaving zero net book value. 
 
Assets under construction work was finalised in the financial year 2015/16. No work has been undertaken in 2016/17. 
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16 Property, plant and equipment (other assets) (continued)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2015 119            880            37                   23           3,747            616             5,422         

Additions -                 -                 (37)                 -              88                 -                  51              

Disposals (119)           -                 -                      -              (319)             (3)                (441)           

At 31 March 2016 -                 880            -                      23           3,516            613             5,032         

At 1 April 2015 29              106            -                      6             1,856            616             2,613         

Charge for year 2                19              -                      6             354               -                  381            

Disposals (31)             -                 -                      -              (319)             (3)                (353)           

At 31 March 2016 -                 125            -                      12           1,891            613             2,641         

                  -              755                       -             11             1,625                   -          2,391 

90              774            37                   17           1,891            -                  2,809         

17 Investment properties

2017 2016

£000 £000

Fair value

At 1 April 12,710 11,950       

Additions -                  457            

Fair value adjustments 582             303            

Disposals (722)            -                 

At 31 March 12,570        12,710       

Net book value at 31 

March 2015

 Market 

rented 

properties 

 Market 

rented 

properties 

Accumulated 

depreciation

Net book value at 31 

March 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Office 

premises

Leasehold 

office 

improve-

ments

Assets under 

construction

Motor 

vehicles

Office & 

estate 

equipment & 

furniture

Computer 

equipment Total

2016

The above valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited Chartered Surveyors on the basis of 
Market Value using the comparison method. Market value is defined by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) as 
'The estimated amount for which an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing 
seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and 
without compulsion'. The valuations were carried out in accordance with RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual effective from 1 
January 1996 (as amended).  
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18 Investment in Subsidiaries
2017 2016
£000 £000

Aster Solar Limited - Class A shares 1,500        1,500        

19 Debtors: falling due after more than one year
2017 2016

£000 £000

Amounts owing by group undertakings 12,659      1,265        

Affordable Housing Finance (AHF) liquidity Reserve 1,447        -           

14,106      1,265        

20 Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016

£000 £000

Trade debtors 220           100           

Rent arrears 2,807        2,716        

Service charge under-recovery 1,347        1,434        

Less discounting of debts payable over more than 12 months (248)         (221)         

Less provision for bad debts (1,322)      (1,151)      

2,804        2,878        

Amounts owing by group undertakings 1,859        64             

Other debtors 99             85             

Less provision for bad debts (28)           (46)           

VAT Recoverable -               1               

Other capital grants receivable -               345           

Prepayments and accrued income 99             393           

4,833        3,720        

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

During the year a new loan from Aster  Homes Limited was provided for £12.1 million. The loan is due for repayment on 
the 15 June 2021 and bears interest at 8% over LIBOR. The existing loan with Zebra Property Solutions Limited was 
reduced to £550,000 from £1.3 million, using the proceeds from the sale of open market sale properties.  
 
A condition of the European Investment Bank (EIB) loan provided through the Affordable Housing Finance plc is that 
Synergy Housing Limited holds an amount of at least twelve months interest in liquidity reserve funds as security 
against default on interest payments. These funds are controlled by the EIB and Synergy Housing Limited can only 
access the funds when the principal of the loans are repaid.    

Synergy Housing Limited owns 1,500,000 £1 Class A shares in Aster Solar Limited and 100 £1 shares in Zebra 
Property Solutions Limited.  
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21 Shared ownership properties held for resale
2017 2016
£000 £000

Unsold completed units 2,625       2,370       

Units under construction 4,264       4,692       

6,889       7,062       

22 Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016
£000 £000

Short term deposits 35,934     50,179     

Cash at bank and in hand 20,455     195          
56,389     50,374     

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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23 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016

Note £000 £000

Trade creditors 101           509           

Taxation and social security payable 155           165           

Pension contributions 65             55             

Social Housing Pension scheme recovery plan liability 29             28             

Rent paid in advance 1,033        996           

Service charge over-recovery 1,100        971           
Amounts due under right to buy sharing agreement 611           512           

Amounts owed to group undertakings 7,712        4,086        

Capital grant received in advance 40             39             

Social Housing Grant 25 112           917           

Recycled capital grant fund 26 16             -                

Disposal proceeds fund 27 -                -                

Other creditors 517           423           

Accruals and deferred income 2,461        3,448        

13,952      12,149      

24 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
2017 2016

Note £000 £000

Loans repayable

In less than five years 6,080        34,500      

In five years or more 183,456    134,503    

Less deferred arrangement fees (570)          (639)          

Plus unamortised premium on issue 2,692        -                
191,658    168,364    

Social Housing Grant 25 8,455        5,815        

Recycled capital grant fund 26 17             16             

Disposal proceeds fund 27 193           106           

Tenants funds for repair and replacement -                -                

Amounts owed to other group companies 113,595    113,675    

Social Housing Pension scheme recovery plan liability 157           177           

314,075    288,153    

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Interest is payable on housing loans at varying commercial rates. Loans are secured by fixed charges on 
individual properties. Interest rates ranged from 2.3% to 6.0% (2016: 1.9% to 6.0%) for fixed/hedged loans and 
0.5% to 0.8% (2016: 0.7% to 1.0%) for variable loans.  
 
At 31 March 2017, the association has a loan facility with Santander of £130 million (2016: £130 million) and a £38 
million (2016: £68 million) loan facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland Plc. Each facility has its own designated 
pool of security held with a Security Trustee. 
 
The association at 31 March 2017 also has undrawn loan facilities of £29 million (2016: £25 million) to finance 
future operating cash flows and investments.  
 
Under the terms of an arrangement with Aster Treasury Plc. Synergy Housing Limited has guaranteed the 
repayment of all amounts due by Aster Communities to Aster Treasury Plc. In the case of Aster Communities not 
making any repayments of the loan, Synergy Housing Limited will become liable to settle the amount due. The 
total amount payable by Synergy Housing Limited as at 31 March 2017 is £ Nil (2016: £ Nil). 
 
During the year a loan was secured from the European Investment Bank (EIB), of which the principal was £50 
million and the unamortised premium on issue was £ 2.7 million. 
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25 Social Housing Grant

2017 2016

£000 £000

Balance as at 1 April         6,732 5,387       

Additions 1,908       1,399       

Amortised within Statement of Comprehensive Income (73)           (54)           

Balance as at 31 March 8,567       6,732       

Recognised in:

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 112                     917 

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 8,455               5,815 

8,567       6,732       

Social housing grants received

2017 2016

£000 £000

Social Housing Grant 96,112     94,204     

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Social housing grant (SHG) is receivable from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA). Grant received for 
properties under construction is classified as a creditor due in less than one year. Once properties have been 
completed the grant is classified as a long-term creditor and amortised to the profit or loss for the period over the 
life of the properties’ structure.  

The total accumulated amount of Social Housing Grant relates to properties owned at the balance sheet date.  
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26 Recycled Capital Grant Fund

2017 2016

£000 £000

Funds relating to activities within areas covered by the HCA:

Balance as at 1 April 16            189          

Additions:

Grants recycled 17            -               

Withdrawals:

New build -               -               

Transfers to other Private Registered Providers -               (173)         

Other -               -           

Balance as at 31 March 33            16            

Analysis of Maturity:

- in less than one year 16            -               

- in one to two years 1              16            

- in more than two years 16            -               

33            16            

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Recycled Capital Grant Fund relates to Social Housing or Housing Association Grant previously received on 
social housing properties that have been sold, demolished or which there has been a change of use which does 
not meet the original conditions of the Grant. The Homes and Communities Agency permits grants to be 
reinvested within a three year period into schemes within the Approved Development Programme. The Homes 
and Communities Agency requires funds which have not been reinvested within three years to be repaid. 
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27 Disposal Proceeds Fund

2017 2016

£000 £000

Funds relating to activities within areas covered by the HCA:

Balance as at 1 April 106          33            

Additions:

Funds recycled 87            106          

Withdrawals:

Transfers to other Private Registered Providers -               (33)           

Balance as at 31 March 193          106          

Analysis of Maturity:

- in less than one year -               -               

- in one to two years 106          -               

- in more than two years 87            106          

193          106          

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Section 24 of the Housing Act 2004 requires registered Social Landlords to credit the net proceeds of Right to 
Acquire and Voluntary Purchase Grant Sales to the Disposal Proceeds Fund. 
 
The purpose of the Disposal Proceeds Fund is to provide replacement properties for rent, at no greater cost than 
properties provided through the Approved Development Programme. If the net proceeds remain unspent after the 
third year, the fund becomes repayable to the Homes and Communities Agency. None of the Disposal Proceeds 
Fund balance relates to grant received form the Greater London Authority. 
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28 Financial instruments

28a Financial instruments' descriptions

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Synergy Housing Limited holds several different types of financial instrument which it uses to fund its activities and 
manage its interest rate risk. The characteristics of the main classes of financial instrument held are given below: 
 
Fixed rated loans 
The association's fixed rated loans have a base fixed interest rate plus a margin that varies over the life of the 
borrowing. Due to this variation these loans are recognised using the effective interest method which averages the 
interest rate over the life of the loan. As with the group’s bonds the interest charged to profit or loss is the effective 
interest  and not the amount actually paid.  
 
At the end of the year the association had drawn £168.5 million (2016: £133.5 million) of fixed rated loans which 
incurred an effective interest charge during the year of between  2.3% and  6.0% (2016: 1.9% and 6.0%). 
 
Floating rate loans 
The interest on these loans varies or floats as the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) changes. In addition to 
LIBOR a margin is also charged which makes up the total  interest rate. Within the total amount the group can borrow 
from its lenders there is a set amount designed as floating loans, once this limit is reached the group cannot draw 
down any more floating rate loans. At the end of the year the association had drawn £20.5 million (2016: £34.5 
million) of floating rate loans and was charged interest rates of between  0.5% and  0.8% (2016: 0.7% and 1.0%). 
 
Disposal proceeds fund 
The association receives Social Housing Grant from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to build Social 
Housing. If a tenant purchases their home under the Right to Acquire the grant associated with building the property 
can be released into the Disposal Proceeds Fund to be used to fund the building of other properties. If the grant is not 
re-used within three years it is re-payable to the HCA. A notional amount of interest is added to the fund each year. 
The interest rate is dependent on the value of the fund. The balance in the association's Disposal Proceeds Fund at 
the end of the year was £193,000 (2016: £106,000), this includes interest of £335 added during the year. 
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

28a Financial instruments' descriptions (continued)

28b Financial instruments' classifications

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Recycled capital grant fund   
The Recycled Capital Grant Fund works in a similar way to the Disposal Proceeds Fund. When the tenant of a New 
Build Home Buy property purchases a further tranche of the property, if there are sufficient sales proceeds, the 
associated grant will be recycled via the Recycled Capital Grant Fund. Like the Disposal Proceeds Fund a notional 
amount of interest is added to the fund each year depending on the value of the fund. The balance in the 
association's Recycled Capital Grant Fund at the end of the year was £33,000 (2016: £16,000), this includes £55 of 
interest added during the year. 
 
Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment 
The association has various borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities are valued at cost 
less impairment. The amount of undrawn borrowings at 31 March 2017 was £29 million (2016: £25 million), the cost 
of the undrawn facility is £142,000 (2016: £174,000), it is not considered to be impaired.    
 

Amortised cost 
Basic financial instruments such as loans are measured at amortised cost.  This is calculated using the effective 
interest rate method. For floating rated loans and fixed rate loans with no interest rate changes the effective interest 
will equal the amount of interest paid. For fixed rated loans which have changes in interest rate over the life of the 
loan the effective interest rate will average the different interest rates over the life of the loan. The effective interest is 
the amount that is recognised in profit or loss.    
 
Equity 
Equity is the difference between an entity's total assets and total liabilities. Where a company has joint or a 
controlling interest in another company its share of the equity in that company is recognised in its financial 
statements.   
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

28c Financial instrument carrying values

The association has the following financial instruments:

2017 2016

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost £000 £000

Loan to subsidiary 14,518     2,765       

Trade and rent debtors 4,374       4,250       

Other grants receivable -               345          

Affordable Housing Finance (AHF) liquidity Reserve 1,447       -               

Other debtors 71            39            

20,410     7,399       

2017 2016

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost £000 £000

Inter-company fixed rate loan (113,595)  (113,675)  

Fixed rate loans (171,158)  (133,864)  

Floating rated loans (20,500)    (34,500)    

Disposal proceeds fund (193)         (106)         

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (33)           (16)           

Trade creditors (101)         (509)         

Accruals (2,461)      (3,338)      

Other creditors (517)         (423)         

(308,558)  (286,431)  

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

28d Interest rate profile of borrowings

2017 2016

£000 £000

Association borrowings comprise:

Inter group loans 110,000       110,000   

Fixed rated loans 168,500       133,500   

Floating rated loans 20,500         34,500     

Recycled Capital Grant Fund 33                16            

Disposal Proceeds Fund 193              106          

Total 299,226       278,122   

The above values are the loan principal not the loan's carrying value.

2017 2017 2016 2016

At 31 March % Years % Years

Inter group loans 4.50 26.70 4.50 27.73

Fixed rated loans 4.14 12.00 3.97 7.01

28e Maturity of borrowings

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

0 -1 years -                     16                 16             -                   -                   -               

1 - 2 years 1,520             107               1,627        -                   16                16            

2 - 5 years 4,560             103               4,663        4,560           106              4,666       

Over 5 years 122,920         170,000        292,920    153,440       120,000       273,440   

129,000         170,226        299,226    158,000       120,122       278,122   

Weighted 

average 

period for 

which rate is 

fixed

Weighted 

average 

interest rate

Weighted 

average 

period for 

which rate 

is fixed

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Total

The maturity profile of the principal value of the association's loans, as shown in note 28d; is:

Weighted 

average 

interest 

rate

2017 2016

Repayment Repayment

By 

instalments

Not by 

instalments Total

By 

instalments

Not by 

instalments

The above borrowings are secured against the Synergy Housing Limited's social housing properties. The value of the 
secured properties is £430 million (2016: £395 million). At 31 March 2017 properties valuing £65 million (2016: £64 
million) were unsecured and available to be secured.   
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29 Pension Obligations

Group pension schemes

Summary of movements and balances in funding 

Synergy Housing Limited

£000 £000 £000 £000

County pension schemes

Dorset 513                 526                 (2,022)             (17,097)           

SHPS 198                 -                      -                      -                      

711                 526                 (2,022)             (17,097)           

Synergy Housing Limited

£000 £000 £000 £000

County pension schemes

Dorset 535                 504                 1,763              (14,366)           

SHPS 283                 -                      -                      -                      

818                 504                 1,763              (14,366)           

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

 Total cost by 

scheme 

 Total interest 

on net pension 

liability by 

scheme 

Actuarial gains 

in pension 

scheme Pension deficit 

Actuarial loss 

in pension 

scheme 

Pension 

deficit 

 Total interest 

on net 

pension 

liability by 

scheme 

 Total cost by 

scheme 

2016

2017

The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is accounted for in accordance with FRS 102 section 
28 – ‘Employee Benefits’. The group participates in eight pension schemes. 
 
There are six defined benefit schemes: 
• Wiltshire Pension Scheme (closed to new members), 
• Hampshire County Council Pension Scheme (closed to new members), 
• Somerset County Council Pension Scheme (closed to new members), 
• Dorset County Council Pension Scheme (closed to new members), 
• Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’) final salary defined benefit scheme (closed to new members), 
• SHPS career average of earnings scheme (CARE), 
 
and two defined contribution (‘stakeholder’) schemes: 
• SHPS defined contribution scheme, 
• Friends Provident defined contribution scheme (closed to new members). 
 
Synergy Housing Limited participates in four of the schemes: 
• Dorset Pension Scheme (closed to new members), 
• Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’) final salary defined benefit scheme (closed to new members), 
• SHPS career average of earnings scheme (CARE), 
• SHPS defined contribution scheme 
 
The accounting treatments for each of the schemes are described below. 
 
The pension cost to the company for the year ended 31 March 2017 was £711,000 (2016: £818,000) in respect of 
198 (2016: 205) employees. 
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29 Pension Obligations (continued)

Dorset County Council Pension Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The association participates in the above fund as an admitted body under the Local Government Superannuation 
Regulations 1995, funded jointly by employer and employee contributions. The fund is a defined benefit final salary 
multi-employer scheme, and is contracted out. 
 
As at the balance sheet date there were 51 (2016: 55) active members of the Scheme employed by Synergy Housing 
Limited. The annual pensionable payroll in respect of these members was £1.6 million (2016: £1.6 million). 
 
The fund is subject to an actuarial valuation of the Scheme every three years. The main purpose of the valuation is to 
determine the financial position of the Scheme in order to address the level of future contributions required so that the 
Scheme can meet its pension obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Scheme Actuary has prepared an Actuarial Report that provides an approximate update on the funding position of 
the Scheme as at 31 March 2017. The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in updating 
the latest valuation in order to provide the disclosures required by Financial Reporting Standard No. 102 section 28 – 
Employee Benefits are stated below. The actuary has used the projected unit credit method of valuation. 
 
The last triennial valuation was performed on 31 March 2016 and the results have been incorporated into the financial 
statements for 2017. 
 
The next triennial valuation is due to be carried out on 31 March 2019 and the results for this will be incorporated into 
the financial statements for 2020. 
 
The information in the financial statement relating to the valuation of the pensions scheme’s assets and liabilities has 
been prepared by the scheme’s actuaries, Barnett Waddingham. 
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29 Pension obligations (continued)
Dorset County Council Pension Fund (continued)

Financial assumptions

2017 2016
%p.a. %p.a.

Price increases (CPI) 2.7 2.4

Pension increases 2.7 2.4

Salary increases 4.2 3.9

Discount rate 2.7 3.7

Expected return on assets by category

Mortality Males Females

years years

Current pensioners 23.9         26.0         
Future pensioners 26.1         28.3         

Fair value of employer assets

2017 2016
£000 £000

Equities 16,440     13,471     

Gilts 4,350       2,328       

Infrastructure 979          313          

Hedge Funds 5              21            

Other Bonds 3,358       3,006       

Diversified Growth Fund 1,270       1,140       

Property 2,576       2,637       

Cash 325          992          

29,303     23,908     

Total cost recognised as expense

2017 2016
£000 £000

Current service cost 494          518          

Interest costs 1,397       1,311       

Expected return on assets employed (871)         (807)         

Past service cost -               15            

Losses on curtailments and settlements -               -               

Administration expenses 19            17            

Total 1,039       1,054       

Return on plan assets 4,987       (233)         

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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29 Pension obligations (continued)
Dorset County Council Pension Fund (continued)

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

2017 2016

£000 £000

Opening defined benefit obligation 38,274     40,169     

Current service cost 494          518          

Past service cost -               15            

Interest cost 1,397       1,311       

Contributions by members 100          108          

Actuarial losses/(gains) 7,297       (2,803)      

Other experience measurements -               -               

Losses on curtailment -               -               
Liabilities extinguished on settlements -               -               

Estimated unfunded benefits paid (7)             (7)             

Estimated benefits paid (1,155)      (1,037)      

Closing defined benefit obligation 46,400     38,274     

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

2017 2016

£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 23,908     24,744     

Expected return on assets 871          807          

Contributions by members 100          108          

Contributions by employers 330          350          

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits -               -               

Administration expenses (19)           (17)           

Return on assets less interest 4,116       (1,040)      

Other actuarial gains/(losses) 1,159       -               

Assets distributed on settlements -               -               

Unfunded benefits paid -               -               

Benefits paid (1,162)      (1,044)      
Closing fair value of scheme assets 29,303     23,908     

Projected pension expense for the year to 31 March 2018 31 March

2018
£000

Projected current service cost 696          

Interest on obligation 450          

Administration expenses 24            

Total 1,170       

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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29 Pension Obligations (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Social Housing Pension Scheme  
The group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme). The Scheme is funded and is 
contracted-out of the State Pension scheme. 
 
SHPS is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. Employer participation in the Scheme is subject to adherence 
with the employer responsibilities and obligations as set out in the ‘SHPS House Policies and Rules Employer 
Guide’. 
 
The Scheme operated a single benefit structure, final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate until 31 March 2007. From 
April 2007 three defined benefit structures have been available, namely: 
• Final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate – now closed to new members. 
• Final salary with a 1/70th accrual rate – not available to employees of Aster Group. 
• Career average revalued earnings (CARE) with a 1/60th accrual rate – closed to new members. 
From April 2010 a further two defined benefit structures have been available, namely: 
• Final salary with a 1/80th accrual rate – not available to employees of Aster Group. 
• Career average revalued earnings (CARE) with a 1/80th accrual rate – not available to employees of Aster 

Group. 
 
A defined contribution benefit structure was made available from 1 October 2010. 
 
An employer can elect to operate different benefit structures for their active members and their new entrants. An 
employer can only operate one open defined benefit structure at any one time. An open defined benefit structure is 
one which new entrants are able to join. 
 
Synergy Housing Limited currently operates a final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate (closed to new members), a 
career average revalued earnings scheme (CARE) with a 1/60th accrual rate (closed to new members) and a 
defined contribution scheme for active members offering variable levels of contribution. 
 
In February 2014, Aster Group introduced a career average revalued earnings scheme (CARE) with a 1/120th 
accrual rate. 
 
SHPS defined benefit scheme 
Synergy Housing Limited participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 
non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. It is not possible for the company to 
obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it 
accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme. 
  
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 
December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial 
Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational 
pension schemes in the UK. 
 
 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 64



Synergy Housing Limited

29 Pension Obligations (continued)

The Social Housing Pension Scheme (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SHPS defined benefit scheme (continued) 
The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is potentially liable for 
other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme 
deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of 
the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 
 
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This 
actuarial valuation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m 
and a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have 
agreed that additional contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme as follows: 
 
Deficit contributions 
Tier 1 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2020 £40.6 million per annum (payable monthly and  
    increasing by 4.7% per annum each 1 April) 
Tier 2 
From 1April 2016 to 30 September 2023   £28.6 million per annum (payable monthly and  
    increasing by 4.7% per annum each 1 April) 
Tier 3 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026 £32.7 million per annum (payable monthly and  
    increasing by 3% per annum each 1 April) 
Tier 4 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026 £31.7 million per annum (payable monthly and  
    increasing by 3% per annum each 1 April) 
 
Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011; this 
valuation was certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of £2,062 million, liabilities of £3,097 million 
and a deficit of £1,035 million. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the Tier 1, 2 and 3 
deficit contributions. 
  
Where the scheme is in deficit and where the association has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the 
association recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the 
deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is 
calculated using the discount rate of 1.33% (2016: 2.06%). The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as 
a finance cost. 
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30 Provisions

2017 2016

Other Other

£000 £000

At 1 April 647                -                    

Additions during the year -                    647                

Release during the year (507)              -                    

At 31 March 140                647                

31 Called up share capital
2017 2016

£ £

Ordinary shares allotted, issued and fully paid of £1 each

At 1 April 28                  31                  

Issued during the year 3                    2                    

Cancelled during the year (3)                  (5)                  

At 31 March 28                  28                  

32 Other reserves

Other reserves consist of the following amounts:

2017 2016

£000 £000

At 1 April 166,799         167,439         

Revaluation surplus realised on disposals (838)              (640)              

At 31 March 165,961         166,799         

Other provisions relates to a provision for unused office space rented by the association under an operating 

lease.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Revaluation 

reserve

Revaluation 

reserve

Revaluation reserve 
Prior to transition to FRS 102, on 1 April 2014, the association's social housing properties were revalued 
each year. The revaluation reserve represents the increases in value of properties held at this date. On 
transition to FRS 102 the group moved to recognising its social housing at deemed cost and no longer 
recorded increases in social housing property valuation. 
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33 Capital commitments

2017 2016

£000 £000

70,783            66,325       

               2,211 8,963         

72,994            75,288       

34 Operating leases

2017 2016

£000 £000

Land and buildings

Not later than one year 5                     5                

Later than one year but not later than five years 22                   21              

Later than five years 373                 378            

Office premises 

Not later than one year 224                 372            

Later than one year but not later than five years 846                 1,462         

Later than five years 1,673              2,291         

3,143              4,529         

Under FRS102 disclosure of  the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 

is required. The comparative figures have been up dated to reflect this. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been provided for 

in the financial statements

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the board but has not yet 

been contracted

The association has total commitments under non-cancellable operating 

leases due to expire as follows:

These commitments will be funded through a mixture of cash and committed borrowings. The association's

available committed borrowings are set out in note 24.
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35 Homes and bed spaces in management and in development

2017 2016

No. No.

Under development at end of year:

Housing accommodation                   410 401                 

Shared ownership                   234 261                 

644                 662                 

Under management at end of year:

Owned and managed by the association:

Housing accommodation

Social rent 6,022              6,035              

Affordable rent 592                 580                 

Supported housing

Social rent 1,739              1,739              

Affordable rent 4                     4                     

Shared ownership 264                 231                 

Leasehold 483                 483                 

Temporary Social Housing 42                   42                   

Unavailable for letting -                      -                      

9,146              9,114              

Not owned but managed by the association:

Housing accommodation -                      -                      

Social rent 29                   29                   

Affordable rent 4                     -                      

Shared Ownership 12                   2                     

Market rented -                      -                      

Private Sector Leasing 3                     3                     

48                   34                   

Owned but managed by others at the end of the year:

Housing accommodation

Social rent 216                 176                 

Affordable rent 263                 169                 

Supported housing

Social rent 79                   78                   

Shared ownership 218                 105                 

Leasehold 1                     -                      

Care Homes -                      2                     

Market Rented 79                   85                   

856                 615                 

10,050            9,763              

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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36 Related party transactions

37 Status

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Synergy Housing Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aster Group Limited, the ultimate parent 
company and controlling party, and whose consolidated financial statements may be obtained from the 
following address:  
 
The Company Secretary, Sarsen Court, Horton Avenue, Cannings Hill, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2AZ. 
 
Aster Group Limited is the only group to consolidate the company's financial statements. 
 

The association receives management and other services from its holding company, Aster Group Limited, 
and property services from Aster Property Limited and Aster Solar Limited, both fellow group companies 
under the terms of documented Service Level Agreements.  
 
Synergy Housing Limited uses Zebra Property Solutions Limited, a subsidiary of the association, to 
undertake commercial and development activities which are outside the charitable rules on its behalf. 
 
The association has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under FRS 102 Section 33 Related Party 
Disclosures not to disclose related party transactions within the group. This exemption is available 
providing the transactions are entered into between two or more members of a group, so long as any 
subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly owned.  
 
The association recieved £17,850 of services from Aster Options Plus Limited, a fellow member of the 
Aster Group, during the year and had an outstanding balance of £350 with that company at year end. 
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